
512 Indian Street/Dixie Machine Shop 

 

 

 

Dixie Machine Company was established in 1922. Staff believes that J. Usher and H.R. Delegal, 

who were owners of the company, purchased the property in May 1938 from John F. Canty, a 

wheelwright, blacksmith, and city alderman who is also listed at the address in multiple city 

directories. Dixie Machine Company was first listed in City Directories at 512 Indian Street the 

following year. 

While listed as being constructed in 1945 by Historic Building Map, staff found that the building 

was constructed in its original configuration as early as March 13, 1940, based on the Cadastral 

Survey. A real estate ledger book shows improvements taking place on the property in 1938, 

1939, and 1940 under Usher and Delegal as well as sometime between 1930 and 1936 under 

Canty. A 1950 Appraisal Report also lists the ‘apparent age’ of the structure as 15 years old, 

which would place the construction date in 1935. At the time of writing this report, it is unclear 

the exact year that the building was constructed.  

According to the Cadastral Survey, which was completed on this property in 1940, the building 

was between 80.20’ and 80.25’ in length, 37.10’ in width, and 15’ in height with a foundation that 

was 0.60’ deep. The building had a slab foundation, corrugated iron walls, and a gable roof. The 

trim was constructed of wood and was painted. The windows were metal frame with ordinary 

and plated glass. The survey also suggests that work was carried out in the 1960s, but limited 

information was provided on the survey itself. 

The property appears in an aerial photograph (fig. 4) in Savannah Now, a publication by The 

Chamber of Commerce of Savannah Industrial Committee of Savannah Inc. The document was 

published in August 1947. 

The building also appears on the 1950 Sanborn Map (fig. 2). It is listed as a one-story machine 

shop with a concrete floor and has the same footprint as what is shown in the 1947 photograph 

and in the Cadastral Survey. Multiple structures stood on the site prior to the existing building. 

The last building shown on the lot based on Sanborns was a two-story blacksmith shop with 

Figure 1. Cadastral Survey 

 

Figure 3. From Real Estate Ledger Book 

Figure 4. 1947 Photo 

Figure 2. 1950 

Sanborn Map 

 



woodworking on the first floor and printing on the second floor. There was a one story shed 

located on the rear of the building, and a separate one-story shed on the rear property line. The 

machine shop was likely not an alteration of the earlier building. 

The 1950 Appraisal Report rates the building and notes the construction of the building. The 

structure at that time had: 

Metal walls 

Piers with curtain wall foundation 

Gable roof with composite shingles or sheet metal 

Plain wood trim 

Steel casement windows 

‘None’ is checked for sheet metal, but it is unclear if that is referring to the roof or another 

material. The building is noted as being of “average” grade. The building at that time was 79.6 

feet in length and 37.1 feet in width with a total of 2953 square feet. 

No alterations were made between 1950 and 1955 based on Sanborn Maps. 

 

     

 

 

 

An aerial photograph of the area around the property appears in the 1950, 1952, 1955, 1957, and 

1958 City Directories (fig. 5). The property, however, is obscured by present day Hamilton Hall. 

The 1963-1964 City Directory includes an artist’s rendering of the redevelopment of the area, 

and it shows the building in its original configuration (fig. 6). The building would be expanded 

by 1973 (fig. 7). 

Dixie Machine Co. remained in the building through 2023 based on City Directories. Various 

advertisements state that the company were “Manufacturers – Distributors of Industrial and 

Marime Equipment.” They also note the names J. Usher and H.R. Delegal, the company owners. 

Staff found the following information about management, ownership, and production. This list is 

not all inclusive and is only what staff could find at the time of writing this report. 

Figure 5. (Left) Photo from 1950, 1952, 1955, 1957, and 1958 City Directories 

Figure 6. (Middle) Photo from 1963-1964 City Directory 

Figure 7. (Right) 1973 Sanborn Map 



Savannah Now 

August 1947 

Castings, forgings, etc. 

 

December 1945 Manufacturers of Georgia 

Approx. No. of Employees: 6 

 

May 1947 Manufacturers of Georgia 

Product: Castings, forgings 

Approx. No. of Employees: 6 

 

1960 – 1961 Manufacturers of Georgia 

1922 

Machine Shop 

R. Alton Usher 

 

1963 – 1964 Georgia Manufacturing Directory 

Conveyors, Rollers, Paper Mill 

 

1966 SPA Directory, Savannah Manufacturers  

G. K Brown, Manager 

James D. Martin, Owner 

Machine Shop 

 

1966 Savannah District Authority 

James Martin, Manager 

Machine Shop 

 

1968 Georgia Manufacturing Directory  

G. K Brown, Manager 

James D. Martin, Owner 

Job Machine shop, steel fabrication work, repairs to propellers and small ship repairs 

 

1969 Georgia Manufacturing Directory 

Conveyors + rollers 

Paper mill equipment 

Boat repair 

 

1969 Savannah Auxiliary Services Directory  

12 Employees 

Principal business: general machine shop work. Steel fabrication and erection. Took 

and die work. 

Equipment capability: 



Machining: engine lathes, boring mill, radial drill press, vertical drill presses, vertical 

band saw, horizontal band saw, milling machines 

Fabricating: welding 

Additional Information: Capable of repairing marine propellers of all sizes. Is 

considered a precision shop. 

 

1974 Georgia Manufacturing Directory 

Date Est. 1922 

Conveyors + rollers 

Paper mill equipment 

Boat repair 

Machine shop 

 

1975 Georgia Manufacturing Directory 

Date Est. 1922 

Conveyors + rollers 

Paper mill equipment 

Boat repair 

Machine shop 

 

1996 Georgia Manufacturing Directory 

Date Est. 1922 

Bill Brown, Pres. 

Machin Shope, Job Work 

Boat Repair 

 

1997-1998 Georgia Manufacturing Directory 

Date Est. 1922 

Bill Brown, Pres. 

Machin Shope, Job Work 

Boat Repair 

 

Three city permits have been issued for the property, but all were right of way permits that would 

not have impacted the building. An application was also submitted to subdivide the property in 

2015, but the application was withdrawn by the applicant. At the time of writing this report, no 

Certificates of Appropriateness or permits, other than those already mentioned, were found for 

this property. 

Georgia State University conducted a digital research session with staff to allow staff to see a 

collection related to the Dixie Machine Company. The majority of the information in these files 

were related to union agreements, negotiations, grievances, etc. There was a name change in the 

1960s from Dixie Machine Company to Dixie Company. The company was affiliated with a 

bankruptcy in the 1970s that saw the sale of certain items such as machinery. The session did not 

provide information that ties the building to a historical event or person and did not provide 



information on the alteration or development of the building. The video of the session is 

available upon request.  

 

For research, staff utilized:  

• Georgia State University. Coordinated a virtual research section to see the Dixie Machine 

Shop box (District Lodge 96 (Savannah, Ga.) Collection) within the International 

Association of Machinists and Aerospace Workers.  

• The Savannah Municipal Archives – Real Estate Ledger and Real Estate Assessment 

Books, Appraisal Report 

• The Georgia Historical Society Digital Database 

• The Digital Library of Georgia 

• The Georgia Historic Newspaper Database 

• The Cadastral Surveys 

• Vertical files, City Directories, and Publications within the Bull Street File. Vertical file 

topics related to this topic included: 

o Savannah Cities R-S 

o GA Business and Industry 1949-1979 

o Savannah - Streets - F-M 

o Savannah – Architecture 

o Savannah – Business (Multiple Subcategories) 

o Savannah - Maps 

• Virtual Vault (Georgia Archives). General search and search through the Vanishing 

Georgia Collection. 

• Physical and Digital Vertical Files, the MPC office 

• Certificate of Appropriateness and Permit Files 

 

  



City Directory Research for 512 Indian Street 

Year Name 

1920 510 – 512 Mingledorff & Co. 

514 John F. Canty 

1921  510 – 512 John F. Canty 

1923  510 – 512 John F. Canty 

1928 512 – 514 John F. Canty  

[Staff did not find any Directories for 1929 – 1933.] 

1934 512 – 515 Vacant 

1937 512 – 515 Vacant 

1938 511 – 512 Vacant 

514 – 515 Vacant 

1939 512 Dixie Machine Co 

514 Not Listed 

1940 512 Dixie Machine Co 

514 Not Listed 

1941 512 Dixie Machine Co 

514 Not Listed 

1942 512 Dixie Machine Co 

514 Not Listed 

1947-1948 512 Dixie Machine Co 

514 Not Listed 

1950 512 Dixie Machine Co 

514 Not Listed 

1951 512 Dixie Machine Co 

514 Not Listed 

1952 or 1953 512 Dixie Machine Co 

       Dixie Propeller Co 

514 Not Listed 

1954 512 Dixie Machine Co 

       Dixie Propeller Co 

514 Not Listed 

1953 512 Dixie Machine Co 

       Dixie Propeller Co 

514 Not Listed 

1955 512 Dixie Machine Co 

       Dixie Propeller Co 

514 Not Listed 

1957 512 Dixie Machine Co 

       Dixie Propeller Co 

514 Not Listed 

1959 512 Dixie Machine Co 

       Dixie Propeller Co 

514 Not Listed 

1960 512 Dixie Machine Co 



       Dixie Propeller Co 

514 Not Listed 

1961 512 Dixie Machine Co 

       Dixie Propeller Co 

514 Not Listed 

1962 512 Dixie Machine Co 

514 Not Listed 

1964 512 Dixie Machine Co 

514 Not Listed 

  

Directories Accessed at the Bull Street Library 

2011 512 Dixie Machine Co, 

2017 Dixie Machine and Fabrication Co 

2019 Dixie Machine and Fabrication Co 

2020 Dixie Machine and Fabrication Co 

Robert Rodney 

2021 Dixie Machine and Fabrication Co 

2023 Dixie Machine and Fabrication Co 

 

 

 

  



Additional Research 

 

Photographs  

 

 
 

 
From Savannah Now, Published August 1947 

  



1950, 1952, 1955, 1957, and 1958 City Directories 

 

 
 

1963-1964 City Directory 

 
  



Photos Taken in 2024 

  

  



  

 



 
 

 
 

   

  



Property/Tax Information  

 

Cadastral Survey 

 
 

 
  



1950 Appraisal Report 

 



 
 

  



Real Estate Ledge Book (O-Z)  

Dates: 1936-1940 

 
 

 
 



 



 
 

Real Estate Assessment Record – 1931-1936 

 



 



 



Business Information  

 

Report of the State Auditor of Georgia, year ended June 30, 1943 

 

 
 

  



Report of the State Auditor, year ended June 30, 1945, Supplement 

 

 
 

 

  



December 1945, Manufacturers of Georgia 

 
 

Savannah Now, Published August 1947 

 
 

  



May 1947, Manufacturers of Georgia 

 
 

September 19, 1959, Bulletin (Monroe, Ga) 

 
 

  



August 1959 – August 1960 (L) and September 1960 – May 1961 (R) 

Georgia AnchorAge 

   
 

April 30, 1960, Bulletin (Monroe, Ga) 

 
 

1960-1961 (L) and 1963-1964 (R), Georgia Manufacturing Directory 

   
 

  



October 14, 1961, Bulletin (Monroe, Ga)  

 
 

1966, SPA Directory. Savannah Manufacturers 

 
 

  



1966, Savannah District Authority 

 
 

1968, Savannah Manufacturers Directory 

 
 

1969, Georgia Manufacturing Directory 

 
 

 

 

  



1969, Savannah Auxiliary Services District 

 

  
 

1974 (L) and 1975 (R), Georgia Manufacturing Directory 

  
 

1996, Georgia Manufacturing Directory 

 
  



1997 – 1998, Georgia Manufacturing Directory 

 

 
 

 

Other Information 

 

 
The bulletin (Augusta, Ga.) 

April 27, 1940 

  



Sanborn Maps 

 
1888 



 
1898 

 



 

1916 

 



 
1950 

 



 
1953 



 

1955 

 



 
1973 

 

 


